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PARKING MANAGEMENT SERVICES

	No.
	Date Requested
	Question
	Response
	Date Responded

	1
	10/03/2017
	“drop down” list in column G “WBC CPE – ITT – Criteria B – Annex B – Mandatory Requirements FINAL” is not functioning
	File amended so “drop down” facility works and new file uploaded to Contract Finder - “WBC CPE – ITT – Criteria B – Annex B – Mandatory Requirements FINAL v2”
	10/03/2017

	2
	15/03/2017
	Are you using a portal we need to express interest via?
	(OJEU: 2017/S 048-088171) There is no need for you to formally “express an interest” via a portal. All you need to do is submit your tender, as per the ITT that can be found on “Contracts Finder” -https://www.contractsfinder.service.gov.uk/Notice/7d0daebd-d103-474e-99e1-b37b87855fbb

	15/03/2017

	3
	22/03/2017
	Clause 8.8 - Are Charts, Tables, Flowcharts, permitted and will these be excluded from the word count.
	The application of Word Count limits is explained in more detail, together with an example, in Criteria C – Annex B. Please refer to this explanation. In general, unless specifically allowed in the question, any embedded image, table, flowchart or similar will be counted within the word count.
	07/04/2017

	4
	22/03/2017
	Criteria C – Annex B - Method Statement 7 - Describe the envisioned fault reporting for all parking infrastructure, including on and off-street areas patrolled, including the Health and Safety reporting method and process.  The current WBC Health and Safety Inspection Report is included as an example below. There is no example of the H&S inspection report provided?
	The example of the H&S Inspection Report will be uploaded to Contracts Finder. Please note that a H&S Incident report is completed electronically, so no example can be provided.
	07/04/2017

	5
	22/03/2017
	1.2.3 – Can WBC provide a breakdown of the volume and category of the permits (i.e. season car park tickets, business permits, resident permit, visitor permit etc.) and how many we still be required to be physical tickets/permits?
	Please see Annex 14 of Appendix 1 – Service Specification FINAL document.
	07/04/2017

	6
	22/03/2017
	1.2.3 – Can the Council provide samples of any physical permits we are to produce
	The Council currently produces a letter with a permit in the bottom right hand corner that the customer detaches and places in their vehicle together with a plastic holder. However, the Council will be happy to explore different options and/or virtual permits in the future for agreement during mobilisation.
	07/04/2017

	7
	22/03/2017
	1.3.2 – Will the Council require access to the proposed IT system and if yes how many user licences should the contractor account for?
	Yes the Council will require access to the proposed IT system.
2No. user concurrent licences should be allowed for initially.
	07/04/2017

	8
	22/03/2017
	1.3.7 – Can the Council confirm what the 2,372 Fixed Penalty Notices were issued in relation too. Will the deployed CEOs be expected to issue both PCNs and FPNs from the same HHCT or are the FPNs manual tickets.
	FPN’s will not exist in this contract as CPE will replace FPN’s with PCN’s.  The FPN number relates to the current off-street parking volumes.
	07/04/2017

	9
	22/03/2017
	1.4.1 – The Council has stated that the enforcement service is to be based on 192hrs a week. We assume that this is for CEO deployment and does not include SCEO hrs.
	The total hours per week are for enforcement hours.  The tenderers can split the SCEO/CEO hours as they see fit.
	07/04/2017

	10
	22/03/2017
	1.4.2 – Are we correct in assuming that the existing TUPE staff do not hold WAMITAB level 2 (Car Park Supervisor) or Level 3  (Technical Support Assistant)
	None of the existing Car Park staff hold any WAMITAB qualifications.
	07/04/2017

	11
	22/03/2017
	1.6.1 – It is noted that the Council will not provide an operational base, will the council provide any access to other council facilities i.e. offices/toilets/rest areas within car parks or council premises
	No, the Council will not provide any access other than general facilities available at the Civic Offices, Shute End and in Libraries. The Council operates a ‘Local Loo’ scheme where the public can use toilets in pubs and cafes as well. More details of the scheme are available on the Council’s website.
	07/04/2017

	12
	22/03/2017
	1.7.2.5 – Will there be any grace period before the KPI come into force
	By mutual agreement with the selected supplier, WBC would expect to operate a short “bedding in” period during which it is expected that KPIs would be measured but not enforced.
	07/04/2017

	13
	22/03/2017
	2.1.8 – It is noted that travel time from base to patrol area is not included in the deployed hours. Are we correct in assuming that travel between patrol areas is included in the deployed hours.
	Yes your assumption is correct.
	07/04/2017

	14
	22/03/2017
	2.1.21.2.1 – How many suspensions per annum does WBC anticipate
	WBC currently anticipate < 50 suspensions per annum
	13/04/2017

	15
	22/03/2017
	2.1.21.2.1 – Is the contractor to provide suspensions equipment signs and cones
	Yes.
	07/04/2017

	16
	22/03/2017
	2.2.2.1 – Does the Council have any existing radio infrastructure that would be made available to the contractor i.e. Ariel, repeater base stations etc.
	No.
	07/04/2017

	17
	22/03/2017
	2.2.5.2 – If a CEO is required to provide a manned presence at a car park we assume this will be taken into consideration if this impacts on the provision of services covered by KPIs 2 & 3.
	Yes it will be taken into consideration if this impacts on the provision of services covered by KPI’s 2 & 3.
	07/04/2017

	18
	22/03/2017
	2.2.6.1 - Over the last 12 months how many times were 2nd line maintenance required on the existing parking equipment.
	Since 1st April 2016 to date, we have logged 174 calls with our suppliers.
	07/04/2017

	19
	22/03/2017
	2.2.6.1 – Refers to parking payment equipment, but Annex 13 also list CCTV cameras, signs & monitors are we also responsible for these items?
	Yes, some of the cameras relate to the ANPR systems and the rest are normal CCTV surveillance cameras and associated equipment. FYI, there are 6No. CCTV cameras at Winnersh P&R  plus 2No. ANRP cameras and 5No. CCTV cameras at Mereoak P&D plus 2No. ANPR cameras
	07/04/2017

	20
	22/03/2017
	2.2.6.1 -  What does the Council classify as second line maintenance
	Maintenance which is required to be carried out by a 3rd party supplier, i.e. Metric for AsLAN machines.
	07/04/2017

	21
	22/03/2017
	2.2.6.1 – Are there any existing maintenance response arrangements in place with 3rd Party equipment providers listed in Annex 13 and when do these expire?
	The Council has a Service Agreement with the supplier of the ANPR parking system at Winnersh Triangle Park and Ride car park that ends on 15 October 2017. The new system at Carnival MSCP will be under warranty for 12 months.
	07/04/2017

	22
	22/03/2017
	2.2.6.1 – Will there be a requirement to man the Carnival MSCP Car Park upon its completion? If yes are these hours in excess of the 192 hrs a week stated within the specification?
	No, the Carnival MSCP will not require to be “manned”. Routine patrol visits will be required to check on parking conformity and maintenance and these should be included in the 192 hours stated.
	07/04/2017

	23
	22/03/2017
	2.2.7.1 – We assume that all costs associated with the ASLAN system will be borne by the Council
	Yes.
	07/04/2017

	24
	22/03/2017
	2.6.2 – Can the Council confirm how many P&D tickets were used over the last 12 months
	1,396,606 P&D tickets were sold over the previous 12 months.
	07/04/2017

	25
	22/03/2017
	3.1.4 – Can the Council provide daily/weekly/monthly/annual volumes of; Telephone calls received, correspondence received, despatched letters, items scanned, payments received (phone/post/on-line), permit applications, season ticket applications
	This information is not available, however, permit and season ticket applications are approximately the same as those issued and this information is included in Annex 14 of Appendix 1.
	07/04/2017

	26
	22/03/2017
	3.3.3 -  Who is responsible for any costs associated with TEC and DVLA
	The Council will be responsible for the costs with TEC, however, the supplier will be responsible for making DVLA enquires at the appropriate time in accordance with the Regulations and making payment for these enquiries. The Council will reimburse the supplier on a monthly basis for these payments.
	07/04/2017

	27
	22/03/2017
	3.5.1.2 – How many till receipt ANPR payment machine rolls were used over the last 12 months
	Since the car park started operating in October 2015 we have used 10 receipt rolls.
	07/04/2017

	28
	22/03/2017
	TUPE - Can you provide job descriptions /role profiles for the two positions (Technical Support Assistant & Car Park Supervisor)?
	

        
	13/04/2017

	29
	22/03/2017
	TUPE - Do staff receive any enhanced rates for working weekends, bank holidays, evenings
	No
	07/04/2017

	30
	22/03/2017
	TUPE - What is their current shift rota
	The Car Park Supervisors currently work 10 days over two weeks – Monday to Saturday. Week one – 6 days Monday to Saturday; week two - 4 days with rest days on Saturday and one other day between Monday to Friday.
	07/04/2017

	31
	22/03/2017
	TUPE - Is there any Trade Union recognition in place and with whom
	The Council does recognise Trade Unions and mainly deal with UNISON and the GMB.
	07/04/2017

	32
	22/03/2017
	TUPE - How many days sick has each individual had over a 12 month period
	While it is considered  this information is not relevant at this time we can advise there has been no sickness absence over the last 12 months
	07/04/2017

	33
	22/03/2017
	TUPE - Age/D.OB of staff
	It is not appropriate to issue this type of data at this stage.
	07/04/2017

	34
	22/03/2017
	TUPE - Hourly rate of pay
	Employee 1: £11.02; Employee 2: £10.44; Employee 3: 10.07;
Employee 4: £10.44; Employee 5: £10.44 
	07/04/2017

	35
	22/03/2017
	TUPE - Are the annual leave and sickness entitlement shown capped, or will they increase further with service?
	Annual Leave: 2 x employees entitled to 5 days extra leave after 5 years continuous service.
Sickness Entitlement: 2 x employees entitlement will increase year on year until 2019
	07/04/2017

	36
	22/03/2017
	TUPE - Is there an enhanced redundancy policy
	Redundancy pay is calculated on actual week’s salary
	07/04/2017

	37
	22/03/2017
	TUPE - Is there a redeployment or protected pay policy
	There is a redeployment policy and pay is protected for 18 months where an employee is redeployed into a lower grade having completed 2 years continuous service:  100% protection for 12 months; 50% protection on the difference between the higher and lower pay rates for 6 months 
	07/04/2017

	38
	22/03/2017
	TUPE - Do they have any other payments or allowances that may not be deemed contractual but may constitute custom and practice?
	Nil
	07/04/2017

	39
	22/03/2017
	TUPE - Are there any local agreements that may have a financial impact?
	No
	

	40
	22/03/2017
	TUPE - Are there any bonus arrangements?
	Nil
	07/04/2017

	41
	22/03/2017
	TUPE - Are the car and honoraria allowances a contractual arrangement?
	Honoraria Payment: No
High Mileage Car User Allowance: Yes but must complete 1,000 business miles each year to retain it. If 1,000 business miles is not met it is withdrawn with 3 months’ notice given.  If they meet the 1,000 business mile threshold at a later date they receive the allowance again.  The allowance is reviewed annually.
	07/04/2017

	42
	22/03/2017
	TUPE - Are there mobility clauses within their contracts?
	To travel within and outside the Borough on visits and to attend meetings
	07/04/2017

	43
	22/03/2017
	TUPE - Are there any specific contractual clauses around working location and breaks?
	No
	07/04/2017

	44
	22/03/2017
	Indemnity – clause 24 - The liability clause is non-standard in comparison with BPA standard contracts and is uncapped and includes consequential losses, indirect losses, loss of profit and loss of revenue claims.  As it is for the Council under clause 24.6 could the Contractors liability exclude loss of profit, indirect and consequential losses etc. and also be capped at a % of the annual income under the Contract. We would recommend a cap of 50% of the annual income.
	No
	13/04/2017

	45
	22/03/2017
	Contract Variations - clause 7 – please could the Authority confirm it will compensate the contractor for any unrecoverable unavoidable and undepreciated costs (all subject to mitigation) resulting from any material change to the Services.
	No, the Council will not be held liable for compensation in the event of variations to the Services, however, WBC would expect to discuss and agree with the Contractor a reasonable approach to any such variations to address all parties’ concerns.
	13/04/2017

	46
	22/03/2017
	Annex 7 – Paddocks car park or Wellington House car park are not included is this correct?
	Yes, The Paddocks and Wellington House car parks form part of a redevelopment project in the near future
	07/04/2017

	47
	22/03/2017
	Appendix 2 – Pricing Schedule - If the contractor provides a Parent Company Guarantee in place of a Performance Bond, I assume we can enter £0?
	Yes
	13/04/2017

	48

	28/03/2017
	TUPE - Please provide full details of the transferor’s pension scheme including trustees, details of the trust deed, retirement rules, benefits on retirement and current audit position of the pension?
	This is the Local Government Pension Scheme and details of the scheme can be found at rules and benefits can be found at: https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/bpf/info/7/about_the_fund/52/what_type_of_scheme_is_the_lgps

	07/04/2017

	49
	28/03/2017
	TUPE - Please provide details of the normal retirement age and any justification for relying on a retirement age
	The Council has no compulsory retirement age.  
	07/04/2017

	50
	28/03/2017
	TUPE - Please supply any information regarding collective arrangements
	Pay reviews are discussed collectively with the trade unions nationally.  Terms and Conditions of employment would be discussed locally with the trade unions.
	07/04/2017

	51
	28/03/2017
	Clause 1.3.4.1 - Tracking of CEOs in real time with the capability to show when a CEO is in the process of issuing a PCN / FPN or when the CEO is available - The system will only track activity carried out on the handheld so for example logging when they enter a street, carry out an observation, issue a PCN. It does not track this continuously or flag them as in the process of issuing a PCN only at the point that the PCN is issued. Can the council clarify the requirement for knowing when the PCN issue process is starting, or confirm that logging point of issue is sufficient?
	The logging point is sufficient.
	07/04/2017

	52
	28/03/2017
	Will the contractor be required to provide its own merchant ID or will this be provided via the Council?
	The Council will provide the merchant ID
	07/04/2017

	53
	28/03/2017
	Can the Council confirm that electronic notes, on the Hand Held device, are permitted instead of pocket note books.
	We would ask for clarification in return as to whether the prospective tenderer is seeking for electronic notes instead of pocketbook notes only in relation to the issue of a PCN or do they propose to not have pocketbook notes at all and rely entirely on electronic notes. The preference would be for pocketbook notes unless the tenderer can show a good case for not having them.
	07/04/2017

	54
	30/03/2017
	SOR – Administration services unit prices are requested per person per day but volumes are requested per person per month please clarify?
	Volumes should be per day.
	07/04/2017

	55
	30/03/2017
	There does not appear in the schedule of rates anywhere to submit our prices for the following items can you advise of where these items should be recorded within the pricing schedule:

· Permit applications assessment and processing
· Issuing of permits
· Printing of produced documents including permits and season tickets
· Mail receipt and despatch
· Dispensation and waiver applications and permissions including taking payments
· Operational base 
· Processing payments and transactional charges
· Scanning
· Suspension applicants, assessments, processing
· Provision of PO box no.
· Provision of Pre-paid envelopes 
· Provision of P&D tickets
· Provision of Pay on foot barrier tickets
	








The first eight items listed are to be covered in the day rate of back office staff.







Items 9 to 11 are to be covered in overheads.

Items 12 & 13 are covered under 2nd line maintenance in item 19 for P&D tickets and Item 21 for Pay on Foot of the pricing schedule. 2.2.6.1 and Annex 6 of the Service Specification refers to P&D tickets but should be read to also include Pay on Foot barrier tickets as well. 
	07/04/2017

	56
	30/03/2017
	TUPE - What level of training have the existing Technical Support Assistants have in Notice Processing, payment handling, telephone handling, permit management?
	They have local systems based training in these areas.
	07/04/2017

	57
	30/03/2017
	TUPE - What shifts do the current technical Support Assistants operate?
1 Full Time - presume Monday – Friday 09:00 to 17:00?
2 Part Time - 25 hours and 18.5 hours what days a week do they work or how many hours each day do they work
	Full Time – Monday to Friday 09.00 to 17.00 within a flexitime system.
Part time – 25 hours – Monday to Friday 09.15 to 14.15 within a flexitime system.
Part Time – 18.5 hours – Monday 12.30 to 17.00 and Tuesday to Friday 13.30 to 17.00 within a flexitime system.
	07/04/2017

	58
	30/03/2017
	Liability – we note the Council excludes consequential losses, indirect losses, loss of profit etc. and has an aggregate cap on liability (24.6/24.11). Please could the same protections be afforded to the new contractor in respect of claims not covered by insurance?
	No
	13/04/2017

	59
	30/03/2017
	Termination – we note a termination right clause allowing the Council the right to terminate effectively at any time (on 6 months’ notice) when it decides to without any compensation payable to the new contractor. Given the extensive termination or default rights please could this clause be removed?
	No
	13/04/2017

	60
	30/03/2017
	Index – will the Council allow for any increases to the NLW which impact on the staff wages to be passed directly through to it as rises in accordance with indexation are likely to be inadequate?
	The Council will not accept any automatic pass through of increased costs, including those associated with NLW. Such costs should be presented by the Contractor in accordance with clause 8.7 of the Contractual Terms & Conditions.
	13/04/2017

	61
	30/03/2017
	Bond – will the Council accept a PCG instead of a performance bond of 15% of the annual contract value which will incur a significant cost?
	Yes (refer to question 47)
	13/04/2017

	62
	30/03/2017
	TUPE – will the Council provide an indemnity in favour of the new contractor in relation to liabilities which arose prior to the TUPE transfer date and which would otherwise transfer to the new contractor?
	No. Should the winning tenderer have any specific issues in relation to TUPE, WBC will be willing to discuss those in detail during the formal TUPE process. 
	13/04/2017

	63
	30/03/2017
	TUPE – will the council reimburse the new contractor for any inaccuracies in the TUPE information supplied during the tender process which result in increased costs for the new contractor?
	TUPE information provided during the tender process is intended merely to assist Tenderers in understanding the potential requirements. Fully detailed information will be provided to the successful Contractor in accordance with the TUPE Regulations.
	13/04/2017

	64
	30/03/2017
	Material Variations – will the Council confirm that the new contractor will be reimbursed for any unavoidable or unrecoverable costs it incurs as a result of any material variation in the Contract?
	Any material variation to the Contract would be subject to the agreement and sign-off by both parties (See clause 2.2 – Contractual Terms & Condition). The specific details of any such circumstance would be mutually agreed at that time.
	13/04/2017

	65
	30/03/2017
	Payment Terms – will the Council consider advance payments?
	No
	07/04/2017

	66
	30/03/2017
	Force Majeure – can the Council add in adverse weather conditions where it is unsafe to deploy as an event and also strike events?
	A comprehensive explanation of Force Majeure is contained in clause 25 (Contractual Terms & Conditions). This explanation addresses both weather conditions and strike action.
	13/04/2017

	67
	30/03/2017
	Pensions
· Will the admission be on a fully funded basis
· What will the future employer contribution rate be
· Will a pension bond be required
· Given the small size of the contract it is conceivable that a deficit is built up for the 5 members which could completely wipe out the profit on the Contract. For this reason will the Council please confirm that it will reimburse and bear full responsibility for:
· Deficits in the scheme whenever they arise
· Any increase in the employer contribution rates
· Any ill health or early retirement strain costs
· Any bond costs
	Aspects of this will need to be obtained from the Actuaries Department/Pension Fund Administrator, which in this case is the Local Government Pension Scheme. This would be discussed and agreed between WBC and the winning Tenderer in accordance with TUPE Regulations.







	13/04/2017

	68
	30/03/2017
	KPIs and Contract Defaults – can these be capped on a monthly basis please to 10% of the monthly contract value?
	No.
	07/04/2017

	69
	30/03/2017
	Stationery – please could the Council confirm it will be responsible for the final design of any PCNs and statutory notices
	The Council will approve the final design of any PCNs and statutory notices but hope that the contractor will assist with providing drafts.
	07/04/2017

	70
	30/03/2017
	Clarification Questions – please could the Council confirm that in the event of any conflict between the terms of the contract documents and the clarification questions and responses that the clarification responses shall prevail.
	Yes, responses to the clarification questions shall prevail.
	07/04/2017

	71
	04/04/2017
	Please could you outline the duties of the Technical Support Officers, advising their roles and responsibilities?
	Please see question 28
	13/04/2017

	72
	04/04/2017
	Please could you outline the roles and responsibilities of the Car Park Supervisors?
	Please see question 28
	13/04/2017

	73
	04/04/2017
	Could you also confirm if the Car Park Supervisors are situated in the larger MSCPs? 
Also, are the Car Park Supervisors included or excluded as part of the estimated 192 deployed hours?
	
No, they are not.

Included (see question 22)
	13/04/2017

	74
	04/04/2017
	Can you please clarify who currently deals with the FPN representations?
	Thames Valley Police

	13/04/2017

	Annex 13 Equipment to be maintained - There are a number of items listed that require more information to enable us to assess the cost involved in providing 2nd line maintenance – questions below:
	
	

	75
	05/04/2017
	Carnival MSCP - it is noted that the exit pedestal’s have intercom facility – as we are not manning the car park where will the intercom be linked to ? Council Office?  Or will the car park be manned by Council staff?
	The intercom can be connected to any telephone number and this should be the contractor’s number. The car park will not be staffed by the Council.
	07/04/2017

	76
	05/04/2017
	Carnival MSCP – LED exit message, who is the supplier
	Newpark Solutions Limited, Bristol.
	07/04/2017

	77
	05/04/2017
	Carnival MSCP – CCTV cameras what make, model of camera and who is the supplier
	The Newpark ‘Fusion’ system HD cameras for the ANPR system and DS-2cd2722FWD-I from Hikvision for the CCTV cameras.
The NVR is a DS-7716NI-14/16P-9TB also from Hikvision
	13/04/2017

	78
	05/04/2017
	Carnival MSCP – Monitor (where are these located) what is the make, model, supplier
	The 2Nr monitor will be located within the Management Office in the Carnival MSCP but further details are not known at this stage.
	13/04/2017

	79
	05/04/2017
	Carnival MSCP – Back office system is this web based ? where will it be linked to (Car park or Council offices) who is the supplier/provider
	The system will be web based  and have a hosted service and Management Suite including the Fusion Dashboard and Glide on line payment platform all supplied by Newpark.
	13/04/2017

	80
	05/04/2017
	Mereoak P&R  – CCTV cameras (how many) what make, model of camera and who is the supplier
	5No. CCTV cameras; 2No. ANPR cameras; 1/3" VISTA  Day/Night Camera 960 Line 0.15 Lux, AI Lens, Wide Dynamic Range, Backlight Compensation; supplied by Security and Electronic Solutions Limited
	07/04/2017

	81
	05/04/2017
	Mereoak MSCP – Monitor (where are these located) what is the make, model, supplier
	The monitor is a Samsung 22" TFT-LCD Full-HD, Wide Monitor and located within the CCTV cabinet in the car park; supplied by Security and Electronic Solutions Limited
	07/04/2017

	82
	12/04/2017
	24.8.2.3 - Is there a need to provide Professional Indemnity Insurance to a value of £5m?
	It will be necessary to provide Professional Indemnity Insurance but for £0.5m not £5m
	13/04/2017
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Job Description 


Job Reference 


704439 


Job Title Car Park Supervisor 


Service Environment  
Highways and Transport Car Parks  


Location All Wokingham Borough Council Car Parks 


Reports to 


 
Car Park Manager 


Grade: Type of position: Hours per Week: 


                       4  


 


Fixed Term  


Full Time 


37 + 5 hours overtime 


This job description has been designed to indicate the general nature and level of work performed by employees within 
this post. It is not designed to contain or be interpreted as an inventory of all duties, responsibilities and outputs required 
of employees assigned to the role.   


Service Purpose 
To provide the best possible car park service to the local area in a timely and cost effective manner. 


  


General Description of the job 
To supervise the Council’s public off-street car parks, enforce the regulations of the current Off Street Parking Order, 
ensure the safety of all customers to ensure that condition of each car park, its facilities and equipment are operations 
and in effective order. 
 


Organisation Chart 
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Main Accountabilities of the post 


 


1 To patrol the Council’s public off-street car parks to ensure that users are parked in accordance with the Council’s 
off street parking regulations. This will ensure that car parking spaces can be available to all customers and that 
any parking payments due are duly paid thereby protecting the Council’s income. 


2 To issue Excess/Standard Charge Notices to users who have infringed the regulations which will ensure that car 
parking spaces are available and protecting the Council’s income. 


3 Carry out basic routine maintenance of the payment machines and report faults as necessary so that customers 
are able to make payment and thereby protect the Council’s income. 


4 Collect printed ticket audit information/data from payment machines, complete report forms and analysis sheets 
and return to main office. This will ensure that all car park records are up to date and any problems investigated 
promptly. 


5 Travel between the Council’s off street car parks across the Borough and collect/deliver consumable materials and 
spare parts to site or main office when required to ensure continuity of the car park service. 


6 Carry out safety inspections of the car parks and associated facilities and report findings verbally or in writing as 
appropriate to the main office so any problems can be promptly rectified. 


7 Make basic written reports of incidents and in conjunction with other supervisors produce weekly/monthly 
inspection reports to be collated by the main office. This will ensure that there is a clear record of any 
faults/problems/complaints for future record. 


8 Monitor stock levels of ticket machine consumables and spare parts to ensure continuity of payment machine 
availability to customers. 


9 Liaise with maintenance, cash collection and other contractors on site when required so as to ensure the 
continuous operation of the car parks. 


10 Carry out occasional surveys and monitoring of car park usage as requested to ensure up to date information is 
available. 


Additional Corporate Responsibilities 
1 High Support, High Challenge: To ensure that you bring forward your good ideas, to challenge areas where the 


Council can improve, and to contribute to the Council’s ongoing success 


2 Health and Safety: Take reasonable care for the health and safety of yourself and of other persons who may be 
affected by your acts or omissions at work; and co-operate with the Council to enable the Council to perform or 
comply with its duties under statutory health and safety provisions. 


3 Equal Opportunities: To take positive action to ensure a thorough understanding of and positive commitment to 
equality in both service delivery and employment practices. 
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4 Special Factors:  


Must hold current (UK) driving licence with no outstanding convictions. 


Must be able to provide own vehicle for use at work. Travel expenses will be paid and the vehicle is required to be 
kept in good condition, regularly serviced and have a valid MOT (if appropriate). Business insurance will also be 
required. 


Work is generally on site or travelling between sites in all weather conditions and required the post holder to stand 
or walk for long periods of time. 


The work has a stressful element in that customers can sometime be abusive, threatening or aggressive towards 
the post holder. A uniform is provided that may have the effect of attracting conflict. 


Work is in the presence of stationary and moving motor vehicles with the unavoidable presence of car fumes. Spilt 
fuel may also be present. 


The post holder usually works alone and often in poor lighting and extremes of weather conditions. 


Will often be required to carry heavy or valuable equipment. 


There is the occasional need to use chemicals to remove graffiti. 


Regularly required to work unsociable hours including evenings and Saturdays and to work overtime as the need 
arises. Working hours are 42 hours per week on a rota basis covering the period  06.00 to midnight seven days per 
week with a usual shift of 7 hours per day 6 days per week but subject to change to meet operational needs. 


Occasional exposure to animal and human fouling and exposed electrical components will be experienced. 


 


Scope 


Resources 
Facilities, equipment or systems within overall span of control Car park facilities including 


ticket payment machines. 


DBS Check required No 
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Values Profile 


One Team 
• Demonstrates individual accountability and collective responsibility 
• Always acts in the best interests of the Council and the communities the Council serves 
• Takes a Council-wide and community view in decision making and activity  
•  Ensures that own service / team delivers the necessary support to achieve collective Council-wide 


priorities 
• Actively engages with debate, discussion and decision making, demonstrating ‘high challenge, high 


support’ behaviour 
• Demonstrates support and challenge to members, colleagues and partners 


Value & Pride 
• Shows pride to work for the Council, to improve outcomes for the Borough and its residents 
• Upholds the principles of continuous improvement, questions existing practice and looks for ways to 


improve service delivery 
• Is focussed on outcomes rather than inputs 
• Upholds our commissioning principles that make the quality, outcomes and costs of service more 


important than who provides it 
• Encourages others, and is encouraged, to take the initiative and innovate 
• Understands we are a learning organisation, so that we all learn from mistakes as we seek to innovate 


to deliver better outcomes, but we aspire to never making the same mistake  
• Embraces training and professional development as means of improving skills and knowledge and 


developing self 
Trust & Respect 


• Can describe, the single, shared Vision for the organisation and how what we individually do contributes 
to realising that Vision 


• Acts at all times with honesty and with integrity and works collaboratively 
• Recognises and celebrates the impact of diversity on the organisation, its customers and its workforce 
• Upholds the Council’s Code of Conduct  
• Shows respect for the sound professional advice of colleagues who have expertise, knowledge and 


experience: we maximise the value and impact of the expertise we share 
• Develops and encourages effective and open communication with staff, Councillors, the community and 


our customers, where respectful challenge is encouraged and helps us to learn and to improve 
• Demonstrates respect and courtesy towards customers, colleagues, Councillors, and members of the 


community with any response and decisions centred on the issues at hand and not on individuals at a 
personal level 


• Ensures decisions are clear, based on evidence, and Fair Process 
• Recognises the valuable part that everyone in the organisation has to play in delivering the excellence to 


which we aspire. 
Customer Service Excellence 


• Demonstrates at all times clear focus on improving services and outcomes for customers and 
communities 


• Expects high levels of customer satisfaction  
• Involves and engages customers and communities in developing, shaping and feeding back on services: 


engagement is early and often 
• Expects services to be responsive to customer and community need, and focuses our targeted services 


on those in greatest need 
• Takes ownership of community issues and seeks to solve them 
•  Acts as an advocate for customers, communities and users of services when needed 


Leadership & Management 
 


•  Actively assesses, manages and reports risks 
•  Uses own knowledge, experience and expertise to contribute to the training and development of the 
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wider organisation 
• Promotes & builds the Council’s reputation as a first class employer & service provider 
 
•  Proactively seeks feedback on own performance and how impacts on others 


Finance & Value for Money 
 


• Understands that Value for Money is delivering activities and programmes that are of most value to 
those the Council is ultimately accountable to 


•  Able to communicate clearly & confidently regarding results in relation to costs & the justification for a 
chosen option 


Political Engagement 
 


• Drives open and active communication with Members, as appropriate to role 
• Values and supports the work of elected members, and makes self available to meet, discuss, problem-


solve with members 
• Maintains a relationship of trust and respect with members 
• Engages proactively in communicating with members on key issues  
• Supports and enhances the skill and knowledge of elected members in the stewardship of their 


portfolios 
Personal & Professional Development 


 


• Takes responsibility for own development and learning 
• Understands the whole Council and how services work and are delivered to meet priorities 
• Explores service delivery outside of the Borough to challenge and develop thinking and planning 
• Accepts and uses coaching and mentoring when helpful 
• Demonstrates awareness of own behaviours and their impact on others 
• Offers own skills and expertise, beyond service specialism, to enhance the work of the wider 


organisation 
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Person Specification 


Should focus here on describing the qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience an individual will require to 
successfully undertake the role. These should be split between essential and desirable.  There is no need to 
repeat value requirements or corporate responsibilities. 


Qualifications  Essential Desirable 


A good standard of education to GCSE level or 
equivalent 


Yes  


 
      A current driving licence with no outstanding        
convictions 


Yes  


Mechanical aptitude – a basic 
mechanical/electrical aptitude to carry out day 
to day essential maintenance on ticket 
payment machines and operate hand held 
computerised equipment 


Yes  


Understanding of basic computer skills Yes  


Technical Skills.  Essential Desirable 


Good communication and customer care skills 
with ability to maintain the image of the 
Council at all times by dealing with members of 
the public with a helpful and friendly attitude 


Yes  


Able to combine tact and diplomacy with a 
determination to face dealing with members of 
the public who may be either upset, annoyed 
or in some cases aggressive. 


Yes  


Able to make decisions on the use of discretion 
when issuing Excess/Standard Charge Notices 
taking account of local factors that may affect 
the customer such as late return, vehicle 
unloading, etc. 


 Yes 


Able to make on the spot decision if necessary 
on situations that present a danger to 
customers’ health and safety, the environment 
or the efficient use of facilities. 


 Yes 


Able to make suggestions regarding facilities 
provided and layout and use of car park areas. 


 Yes 
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Suggestions could affect health and safety, 
efficiency, customer care, customer use and 
income. 


Able to work outside in all weather conditions 
for long periods of time. 


Yes  


Able to plan own inspection rotas in 
conjunction with the other Car Park 
Supervisors to ensure all Council off street 
public car parks receive suitable coverage. 


 Yes 


Knowledge  Essential Desirable 


Knowledge of the Wokingham Borough Council 
off street parking regulations. 


Yes  


Experience Essential Desirable 


No previous car park supervision experience 
necessary. 


 Yes 


Able to work alone and as part of a team. Yes  
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WOKINGHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL 
JOB DESCRIPTION 


  


Job Title: Technical Support 
Assistant 


Job Ref: 4434, 4435, 4436 


Service: Place & Neighbourhood 
Services 


Section: Corporate Services, Street Co-
ordination 


Reports To: Car Park Co-ordinator Location: Shute End 


Grade: 4 Salary: Salary Points 18-21 


Employment Status:  
Permanent 


 


Hours of Work:  
Full time – 37 hours per week  


 


 


 Service Purpose:  
To ensure the efficient day to day operation of the Boroughs public car parking facilities, 
particular attention to ensuring the health and safety of all users and the availability of 
adequate parking to support the local communities needs. 


Job Purpose:  
 To administer the processing of car park penalty notices, season tickets, ticket 


machines faults, cash collection monitoring and residential permits. 


 To provide clerical and customer care support for the car park team including letter 
writing, liaising with customers and our contractors, data inputting and monitoring. 


 Ordering remedial works and consumable parking materials. 


 


Organisation Chart:  
 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Street               
Co-ordination 


Manager 


Car Park  
Co-ordinator 


Technical 
Support 
Assistants  x 3 
(2 FTE) 


Car Park 
Superintendents 
x3 (+ 1 if on street 
car parking 
introduced) 
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Scope (State not applicable where necessary)  


  


Financial Accountabilities  


Budgets directly controlled (please state if this has been 
delegated to the post-holder) 


None 


Budgets monitored on day-to-day basis:  None 


  


Staff Responsibilities  


Number of employees managed/supervised: None 


Number of FTE (Full Time Equivalents) employees 
managed/supervised: 


None 


Health and Safety responsibility: 


In accordance with the provisions of the Health and Safety at 
Work Act 1974 take reasonable care for the health and safety of 
yourself and of other persons who may be affected by your acts 
or omissions at work; and co-operate with the Council to enable 
the Council to perform or comply with its duties under statutory 
health and safety provisions. 
 


 


Management of Physical Assets  


Nature of physical assets directly controlled, (eg. children’s 
home): 


Council’s Car Parks 


 


Details of service contracts managed: None 


  


Summary of Main Contacts. 
The post holder has frequent contact with: 


 Public 


 Businesses 


 Contractors  


 Engineering Section 


 Cashier's Section 


 
  


Main Tasks/Accountabilities  
 


Approx% of working 
time spent 


 
Processing of penalty notices  
 


 
20% 


 


 
Season ticket administration (includes staff and nursery permits). 
 


 
10% 


 
Residential permits administration 
 


 
10% 
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Car Park Income - processing of car park machine income, 
producing report for Cashier's Dept, using Excel spreadsheet. 


 
20% 


 
Ticket machine fault processing  
 


 
10% 


 


 
Assisting with clerical tasks. Data inputting, liaising with 
customers and contractors, letter writing.  
 


 
20% 


Ticket sales monitoring  10% 


 100% 
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PERSON SPECIFICATION 
 


E = Essential to carry out role to minimum required standard 
D = Desirable but not essential to carry out the role 
 


Knowledge/Qualifications:  


 English language 


 IT Microsoft Word/Excel 


 Computer literate in database operation and emails 


E 


Technical Skills:  


 Word processing. 


 Numeracy and accuracy. 


 Microsoft Office, Word and Excel. 


 Communication. 


 Prioritisation of work, secretarial output, arranging mail for signature. 


 Spelling and grammar. 


 Letter writing 
 


E 


Experience: 


 The applicant is required to be confident with working in a busy team, dealing with 
Contractors and members of the public.  


 The Applicant needs to be competent in letter writing, using computerised 
packages and the telephone.  


 


E 


Special Factors: 
 


E 
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BEHAVIOUR PROFILE 
 


 Degree Required Behaviour Statement 


Core Behaviours   
 


 Personal Effectiveness Acts 
Acts in a positive, flexible, 
organised manner, is receptive & 


adopts an assertive style 


 Impact Acts 


Is aware of their impact on 
others & reflects on their own 


behaviour to improve 


performance;  Considers & acts 
on feedback 


 Resilience Acts 


Accept & adapts to both 


significant & day to day change; 
Seeks to identify the benefits & 


opportunities created by change; 
Maintains effective performance 


under pressure & ambiguity 


 Joined Up Thinking Acts 


Demonstrates an awareness of 
how to operate within the formal 


& informal organisational 
structures;  acts in accordance 


with WBC’s  Values 


 Analysis & Judgment Acts 


Acts with & uses ‘common sense’ 
in reaching a solution; does not 


ignore problems -  tackles them 
by breaking them down & 


considering all factors; complies 


fully with WBC Risk Management 
Policy 


 Interpersonal Acts 


Cooperates & works well with 


others in pursuit of team goals; 
support colleagues; develops 


positive working relationships 
with both colleagues & customers 


 Customer & Community 
Focus 


Acts 


Acts appropriately to internal & 


external customer requests, 
ensures customer satisfaction, 


takes responsibility for correcting 
issues 


 Respect Acts 


Acts with dignity, respect & with 


integrity towards everyone; acts 
as a positive role model; flexible 


in approach when dealing with 


colleagues & customers 
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